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	Town/City:  
Georgetown

	Place: (neighborhood or village):



Town Center




	Address:  2 Library Street


	Historic Name:
John Hale Shop

	Uses:
Present: 
single residence

	Original: 
carpenter’s workshop

	Date of Construction:  ca. 1867

	Source:   
historic maps

	Style/Form:   
Italianate

	Architect/Builder:  
John Hale, probable builder

	Exterior Material:

	Foundation:  
brick (parged)

	Wall/Trim:  
asbestos cement shingles

	Roof:  
asphalt shingles

	Outbuildings/Secondary Structures:  


None (this building formerly was an outbuilding of 
28 Central Street)

	Major Alterations (with dates):  


Converted to dwelling, ca. 1890, side entrance & 

porch added

Asbestos cement shingles added


Brick basement parged


Some windows replaced



	Condition:  
good

	Moved:  no  FORMCHECKBOX 
 
yes  FORMCHECKBOX 
     Date:


	Acreage:   0.08 acre

	Setting:   This house is sited on the north side of Library Street just west of a town parking lot ranging from East Main Street to Library Street. The area is a mix of residential and institutional uses.


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Recommended for listing in the National Register of Historic Places.  


If checked, you must attach a completed National Register Criteria Statement form.
ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION   

The John Hale Shop, built ca. 1867, is a two-story wood frame building located on the north side of Library Street east of Central Street.  It had been a dependency and part of the lot of the house on the corner of Central and Library (28 Central St.) until it was subdivided on its own lot in 1840.  The building has a gable roof with a very low pitch that was characteristic of workshops of the period, and the roof edge is embellished with paired scrolled brackets, a popular design feature in the mid-19th century.  The front façade contains the gable end and two window bays.  An entrance and porch were added to the west side of the house when it was altered for residential use in ca. 1890; the porch is enclosed at the rear (north) end.  The building is mounted on a tall brick basement, now parged on the exterior, on which it was probably raised when the building was converted from a workshop, probably built without a basement, to a dwelling.  Windows were limited on the side and rear walls, the latter containing a second entrance.  Historic two-over-two wood sash windows survive in most instances; alterations have been made more recently to the fenestration on the east wall, evidently in response to interior kitchen and bathroom renovations.  The house is sited on the street side of a small, squarish lot.  There is a small yard in the rear and a paved driveway on the east side.  
The John Hale Shop, built ca. 1867 and converted to a dwelling in ca. 1890, is a rare but altered example of a mid-19th-century tradesman’s shop, once much more common in the town.  Retaining its original form and distinctive bracketed cornice at the roofline, the building is a contributing component of the village district.     
HISTORICAL NARRATIVE    
This building first appears on the 1884 village map and is depicted as a barn associated with the house and lot owned by John Mehitable Hale on the corner of School and Central streets (28 Central St.) between 1867 and 1918.  No building appears on the site on earlier maps, although the 1856 and 1872 maps of the village did not illustrate outbuildings.  Nevertheless, the design features of the building are consistent with those characteristic of the late-19th-century—bracketed cornice, two-over-two window sash—suggesting that John Hale, a carpenter by trade constructed the building as a barn and/or shop. The 1893 Sanborn fire insurance map shows the building as a two-story dwelling. 

Born in 1831 in Boxford, John Hale Jr. was the son of John and Matilda French Hale, and he was working as a house carpenter and living in Boxford when he married Mehitable Spofford, also of Boxford, in 1854. The couple’s children Clarence and Alice were born in Boxford about 1858 and in 1860, respectively. At the time of his marriage John Hale Jr. was a shoemaker, and in 1860 he was a railroad station agent. But by 1870 he had taken up house carpentry and had moved to Central Street in Georgetown. By 1880 Clarence H. Hale was a hotel clerk, and Alice, then nineteen, was a variety store clerk. By 1900 the couple was living alone in the Central Street house. The 1901 directory shows Hale in a household with the family of traveling blacking salesman Clarence Plummer. The Central Street house was certainly large enough to house both families, though it is possible that the Plummers, a family of five, were living at 2 Library Street.
Mehitable Spofford Hale died in 1906, and in 1910 John Hale, Jr. is shown alone in his household; he died in 1914 at the age of eighty-two. Four years later the couple’s children Alice, then Alice A. Shreiner of Lancaster, Pennsylvania, and Clarence, who went then by John C. Hale and lived in Tarrytown, New York, sold the corner lot with its two houses to Rowley marine engineer and boat builder (and later dentist) Frederick G. Jellison.
 Jellison used the property for its rental income, and in 1940 he subdivided the property and sold the parcel at 2 Library Street to Alice Smart Poore. Poore and Esau Kaleel of Somerville, who acquired the property from her in 1945, also were absentee landlords.
 
In April 1946 Esau and Rose Kaleel sold 2 Library Street to Lewis A. DiVincenzo of Haverhill.
 Born in that city in 1909, DiVincenzo was the son of Italian immigrants Peter and Angelina Grassi DiVincenzo. His father was a shoeworker, and the family lived on River Street in Haverhill. By 1928 Lewis DiVincenzo was also working in the shoe industry, and the next year he married Albina Spinazola in Windham, New Hampshire. By 1940 the couple was living in Haverhill with their sons Peter J. and Anthony L.  The 1957 directory shows the family at 2 Library Street in Georgetown.

In 1976 the DiVincenzos sold 2 Library Street, and the property changed hands several times before July 1979, when William J. Keech III and his wife Ellen acquired it. They owned and probably occupied the house until 2007, when they sold the property to Amel M. Baghdad, who in turn deeded the property to current owner Renee K. Baghdad two months later.
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2 Library Street: view from S (top) and NE (bottom)
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National Register of Historic Places Criteria Statement Form

Check all that apply:

 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Individually eligible             FORMCHECKBOX 
   Eligible only in a historic district
 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Contributing to a potential historic district          FORMCHECKBOX 
  Potential historic district
Criteria:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A        FORMCHECKBOX 
    B        FORMCHECKBOX 
    C     FORMCHECKBOX 
    D

Criteria Considerations:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A      FORMCHECKBOX 
    B      FORMCHECKBOX 
   C     FORMCHECKBOX 
   D      FORMCHECKBOX 
    E      FORMCHECKBOX 
    F       FORMCHECKBOX 
    G

                   Statement of Significance by________Neil Larson_________________________________

                            The criteria that are checked in the above sections must be justified here.
The John Hale Shop, built c. 1867 and converted to a dwelling in ca. 1890, is a rare but altered example of a mid-19th-century tradesman’s shop, once much more common in the town.  Retaining its original form and distinctive bracketed cornice at the roofline, the building is a contributing component of the village district.     
� Alice A. Shreiner, Lancester PA, and John C. Hale, Tarrytown, NY, to Frederick G. Jellison, Rowley, 16 July 1918, SED 2396:447.


� Frederick G. Jellison, Rowley, to Alice Smart Poore, 22 April 1940, SED 3216:347; Alice Smart Poore to Esau and Rose Kaleel, Somerville, 14 August 1945, 3445:531.


� Esau and Rose Kaleel, Somerville, to Lewis A. DiVincenzo, Haverhill, 1 April 1946, SED 3457:485.


� Louis L. Doucette Jr. and Rita D. Doucette to William J. Keech III and Ellen M. Keech, 4 Library Street, 5 July 1979, SED 6610:765; William J. Keech III and Ellen M. Keech to Amel M. Baghdad, 3 July 2007, SED 26991:213; Amel M. Baghdad, 28 Central Street, to Renee K. Baghdad, 28 Central Street, 28 September 2007, SED 27258:285.





Follow Massachusetts Historical Commission Survey Manual instructions for completing this form.

